
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health,  
Councillor Carl Maynard 
 
FRIDAY, 16 JANUARY 2026 AT 10.00 AM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Member on 15 December 2025  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2.   Disclosure of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
3.   Urgent items   

Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda. 

 
4.   Changes to Spouse Allowances and Savings Credit Disregards within the Adult Social 

Care Charging for Care and Support policy  (Pages 5 - 44) 
Report by Director of Adult Social Care and Health  
 

5.   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Deputy Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 8 January 2026 
 
Contact Summer Kelly, Governance and Democracy Officer,  
01273 336654 
Email: summer.kelly@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts 
 
 

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/videos-of-council-meetings/webcasts


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health, Councillor Carl 
Maynard, on 15 December 2025 at Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams  

 

 

 

13. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD MEMBER ON 28 NOVEMBER 2025  

 

13.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 28 
November 2025.  

 

14. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 

14.1 The Lead Member, Councillor Carl Maynard declared a personal interest in item 4 as a 
Member of Rother District Council's Housing Development Strategy task and finish group. He 
did not consider this to be prejudicial. 

 

15. URGENT ITEMS  

 

15.1 There were none.  

 

16. REPORTS  

 

16.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book.  

 

17. EAST SUSSEX HOUSING PARTNERSHIP STRATEGY  

 

17.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

DECISIONS  

17.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:  

1) Approve the East Sussex Housing Partnership Strategy 2025 to 2030 and;  

2) Endorse the outline draft mobilisation plan for the coming year, which the partnership will 
continue to update.  

REASONS  

17.3 The partnership strategy has been developed through a process of system-wide 
collaboration, identifying shared objectives and strategic outcomes that provides a long-term 
vision for the sector and its place in the wider system.  

17.4 The strategy is designed to form the basis for future business cases across the system, 
to encourage greater levels of pooled resources, shared commissioning and improved service 
coordination between sectors. The housing partnership, and its strategy, is well placed to 
provide the infrastructure to continue to lead the development of the housing sector during 
devolution and local government reorganisation. The partnership will develop a mobilisation 
plan each year, setting out their key areas of work. 

 

18. THE FUTURE OF THE CIRCLE ROOM SEXUAL HEALTH SERVICE  

 

18.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health.  

DECISIONS  

18.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to:  

1) Note the outcome of the consultation and Equality Impact Assessment and;  

2) Approve the proposal to maintain the Circle Room Sexual Health Service under a new 
contract as set out as option 2 within appendix 4 to the report.  

REASONS  

18.3 The consultation and discussions on the future of The Circle Room Sexual Health 
Service demonstrated its cost effectiveness and crucial role in reducing unwanted pregnancies, 
Sexually Transmitted Infections (STIs), and HIV amongst people under 25 years old. The young 
people’s sexual health service specifications will be reviewed. The required Reconciling Policy 
Performance and Resources savings will be met by using sexual health budget identified 
through a negotiated cost avoidance with the local Integrated Care Board. 

 

 

 

Page 4



 

 

 
Report to: Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health 

Date of meeting: 16 January 2026 

By: Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

Title: 
Changes to Spouse Allowances and Savings Credit Disregards 
within the Adult Social Care Charging for Care and Support policy 
 

Purpose: To seek approval for proposed changes to the Adult Social Care 
Charging for Care and Support policy. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Lead Member is recommended to: 

(1) Agree the proposed changes to the calculation of Spouse Allowances (SA) within 
financial assessments as set out in paragraphs 2.5 to 2.13 of this report; 

 
(2) Agree the proposed changes to the application of Savings Credit Disregard (SCD) 
within financial assessments as set out in paragraphs 2.1 to 2.4 of this report; and 

 
(3) Note the financial impact of the proposed changes. 

 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1. The Care Act 2014 governs much of the work of Adult Social Care (ASCH). Particularly 
relevant for Financial Services are section 14, which provides Local Authorities (LAs) with the 
power to charge for services, and section 17, which places the duty on LAs to financially assess 
those who require care and support. East Sussex County Council (ESCC) exercises this power 
and charges for care and support arranged for adults. 

 
1.2. The ESCC Charging for Care and Support policy applies the national legislation in the 
Care Act 2014 at a local level. It governs the ESCC financial assessment (FA) process and 
provides the framework which ensures the legislation is applied appropriately and consistently for 
adults who have care and support arranged by ESCC.  

 
1.3. The FA process, governed by this policy, is vital to ensure the ongoing function of Adult 
Social Care services. The process sets individual assessed contributions and therefore helps to 
off-set the cost of care provided through client contributions. For context, the income that was 
generated from non-residential assessed contributions across the last full financial year was £18 
million (more than £50 million including residential assessed contributions) highlighting the 
importance of ensuring a robust policy is in place to ensure charges are correctly applied. 

 
1.4. For context the figures in the table below show both the income generated from assessed 
contributions over the past 4 years and the proportion this represented of the overall ASCH 
spend. This also shows the projected income and expenditure for the 2025/26 financial year.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/section/14
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/section/17


 

 

Year 
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 

Expenditure/Income Actual Actual Actual Actual Forecast 

Gross Expenditure and 
ASCH Spend 

202M 209M 236M 256M 261M 

Income from Assessed 
Contributions  

35M 38M 

 

48M 56M 59M 

Net ASCH Spend 167M 171M 188M 200M 202M 

Assessed 
Contributions Income 
as a % of overall cost.  

17.5% 18.2% 20.5% 22.0% 22.5% 

 
1.5. Work has been undertaken to ensure that ESCC’s policy is legally compliant. Project 
resource was identified in Autumn 2024 to undertake this policy review, as part of a wider 
development programme across Financial Services.  
 
1.6. This review supports ESCC’s Council Plan priorities. Changes to the policy will ensure 
“best use of resources” as costs for care will be applied fairly, in line with legislation and case law, 
and in the most cost-effective and efficient way. Additionally, the proposed changes will “help 
people help themselves” by ensuring that care and support is available to those who need it, 
whilst ensuring the financial sustainability of delivery by charging those who can afford to pay a 
proportionate and reasonable contribution towards their care costs.  

 
 
2. Proposed changes 

 
 

Proposed Change 1 - Ensuring Savings Credit Disregards (SCD) are applied consistently to all 
who are eligible, across both residential and non-residential financial assessments (FAs) 

 
2.1. Savings Credit Disregard is a means-tested benefit applied to adults who reached 
pension age before 6 April 2016. 

 
2.2. Currently there is a discrepancy between the application of SCD in residential and non-
residential FAs, it is proposed that the policy be amended to ensure that SCD is applied 
consistently across both residential and non-residential FAs. 
 
2.3. The update to the policy would ensure that those identified as eligible but not currently 
receiving the disregard would go on to receive the disregard. This change would affect 410 
individuals who have been identified as eligible. Whilst it is proposed that FAs for this cohort are 
reviewed, and SCD is applied correctly moving forward, it is not suggested that the change be 
backdated. This would be time-consuming and complex for Financial Services as it would require 
significant manual work to identify all FAs and calculate the back dated costs.  

 
2.4. Applying this disregard to an additional 410 adults will reduce their assessed 
contributions, as the disregard in their financial assessments will reduce the amount they pay. 
The estimated income loss is approximately £160,000. However, this is expected to reduce over 
time as eligibility for SCD is based on adults reaching pension age before 6 April 2016 and so the 
number in the eligible group will reduce. 
 

 
Proposed Change 2 - Changing the process for non-residential spouse allowances to ensure 
these are proportionate, can be easily calculated and consistently applied within FAs 

 
2.5. The Finance and Benefits Assessment Team (FABA) currently incorporate a spouse 
allowance (SA) within FAs, where appropriate. This ensures that costs incurred by a partner or 
spouse are considered when an individual’s assessed contribution is set.  

 

Page 6

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/your-council/about/key-documents/council-plans/2025-26#Council%20Plan%20home


 

 

2.6. Whilst there is nothing specific in the Care Act that requires LAs to make a spouse 
allowance within non-residential FAs, Client Assets Sourcebook (CASS) guidance states that LAs 
must “consider the implications for the cared-for person’s partner” when undertaking a FA, and 
spouse allowances are how ESCC complies with this. 

 
2.7. As the specific allowances are not defined by law for non-residential assessments, LAs 
have discretion to determine their own processes for calculating spouse allowances.  
 
2.8. The proposal is to change 2 elements of the non-residential spouse allowance calculation: 

 

 Use a 50% Minimum Income Guarantee (MIG) figure as the basis for the spouse 
allowance, rather than the current approach which allows for 100% (i.e. duplicates figures 
already allowed for in the main financial assessment). For comparison, using 50% of the 
MIG in this way was an approach taken by 10 of the 28 other LAs who provided feedback 
on their current arrangements.  

 

 Apply an age-appropriate MIG for the spouse depending upon whether they are working 
age (currently £86.85 per week) or pension age (currently £174.60), whereas the current 
approach is to use the (higher) pension age MIG in all cases, regardless of the age of the 
spouse. The current approach of always applying the higher, pension-age MIG can be 
seen as both overly generous, and to an extent, disadvantaging any other working age 
adult being assessed financially, in comparison to another working age adult who has a 
partner above State Pension age. Applying the age-appropriate MIG would remove this 
disparity and ensure allowances are equitable and proportionate. 
 

2.9. The proposed changes to spouse allowances have two key benefits: 
 

 Increasing efficiency – The changes would simplify the process within Financial Services 
which will mean that FAs containing spouse allowances could be completed more quickly, 
helping to reduce processing times for finalised FAs. This is particularly important during 
the uplift period each April, as all FAs containing a spouse allowance must be manually 
reviewed (currently approximately 500 FAs). With the current process this review is very 
time consuming during this already busy period. The increased efficiency from the new 
process will help to streamline these reviews and therefore reduce the impact on FA 
completion rates. 

 

 Additional income generation and costs savings – The new, streamlined calculation would 
bring ESCC more in line with the approach taken by many other LAs and would reduce 
the cost of spouse allowances to the council.  

 
2.10. It is difficult to accurately forecast the potential income, as all 500 FAs containing SA 
would need to be manually reviewed using the new calculation. 
 
2.11. The average additional income based on applying the new SA approach to the financial 
assessments of 4 different adults was £26per week per FA. For scale, if this average £26 change 
was applied to all existing SAs then this could lead to more than £600,000 per year in additional 
income (£26 x 500 adults x 52 weeks). Whilst this figure is only illustrative, as SAs would need to 
be calculated individually for all 500 adults, this does show that there is significant additional 
income potential from this change in approach. 

 
2.12. If agreed, the planned changes would be applied within new financial assessments from 
the start of the 2026/27 financial year. To apply these changes to existing FAs will require a 
manual review. A new review resource is currently being established within Financial Services to 
undertake regular, planned reviews of financial assessments on an annual basis. This new 
financial review process will ensure all existing FAs are reviewed annually and the planned 
changes to SCD and spouse allowances would be incorporated into the first review. 
 
2.13. A third proposed change, in respect of Disability Related Expenditure (DRE) will be 
considered by the Lead Member in April 2026, following a period of stakeholder engagement. 
 

Page 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-statutory-guidance/care-and-support-statutory-guidance


 

 

 
Benefits  

 
2.14. This policy review, and implementation of the associated changes, will: 

 

 Ensure compliance with relevant legislation. 
 

 Reduce the risk of legal challenge and complaints. Additionally, having clear, up-to-date 
legal justification for the policy will enable robust responses to any queries that are 
received. 

 

 Increase efficiency within the service, for example by streamlining the process for spouse 
allowances. This will ensure FABA can complete FAs as quickly as possible, therefore 
reducing processing times, meet service targets and improve the experience for adults 
accessing services. 

 

 Generate additional income, projected to be around £600,000 (net £440,000) per year, by 
ensuring spouse allowances are proportionate and the application of SCD is equitable. 
 
 

Financial implications 
 

2.15. As noted above, there are cost implications for the Council in relation to SCD. Whilst this 
change is required to ensure that ESCC’s process is equitable and lawful, it is estimated that the 
changes to SCD could reduce assessed contributions by around £160,000 per year, based on 
the 410 individuals who would be impacted. This impact will reduce over time, as the disregard 
only applies to those who reached pension age before April 2016. 
 
2.16. In contrast, the proposed changes to SA would increase income generation. Whilst the 
value of this is hard to accurately forecast (as described in section 2.10 above), this is expected 
to be around £600,000 per annum. Whilst the value of this is hard to accurately forecast (as 
described in section 2.10 above). 
 
Consultation and equality considerations 
 
2.17. In deciding whether to consult on these changes, various factors were considered 
including Best Value, the duty to act fairly and legitimate expectation. Based on this, consultation 
was not undertaken as the proposed changes:  

 are legally required, 

 technical in nature,  

 will remove inconsistencies, and 

 in many cases will see people’s contributions reduce (e.g. through applying SCD 
appropriately). 

 
2.18. An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for these changes and can be found 
at Appendix 1.  

 
 
3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

 
3.1. The proposed changes to the Charging for Care and Support Policy will enable the 
Council to align its financial assessment approach more closely with that used by other local 
authorities. 

 
3.2. The change to the spouse allowance calculation and savings credits disregard will ensure 
that assessed contributions are appropriate, fair and equitable. This change will support the 
Council priority “making best use of resources now and for the future” as costs for care will be 
applied fairly, in line with legislation, and in the most cost-effective and efficient way. 

 

Page 8



 

 

3.3. Policy updates have been drafted and supporting guidance for the proposed new 
processes have been developed. Subject to Lead Member approval these updated documents 
would be published ahead of the changes being implemented from the start of the 2026/27 
financial year. 

 

MARK STAINTON  

Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

Contact Officer: Ben Baker, Programme Manager 
Tel. No. 07923 382464 
Email: ben.baker@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 

LOCAL MEMBERS 

All members. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

The Care Act 2014 

The Care and Support Statutory Guidance 

 

Page 9

mailto:ben.baker@eastsussex.gov.uk
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/part/1/crossheading/charging-and-assessing-financial-resources
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-statutory-guidance/care-and-support-statutory-guidance


This page is intentionally left blank



2024                                                                                                1  

Equality Impact Assessment  
 
Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA) aims to make services better for everyone who uses them and for staff. It supports 
value for money by getting council services right first time. 
 
We use EQIAs to review information, consider potential disproportionate or specific impacts on different people, and then plan 
actions to reduce or avoid negative impacts and create positive outcomes1. EQIAs help the Council make good decisions for 
people who use our services, staff and residents, and to evidence how we have met our duties under the Equality Act 20102.  
 
EQIAs need to be done whenever a service, project, policy, strategy, activity or proposal is being started, needs to change, or is 
being reviewed: if there is potential for an impact on people, then do an EQIA. The actions that emerge from an assessment are 
then embedded in the relevant action plan to get the best outcomes for the Council, its staff and people who use our services3. 
 
This template sets out how to complete an EQIA. Guidance for sections is in italics in each section and in the end-notes. If you 
have any questions about your EQIA and/or how to complete this form, please use the contact details at the end of this form.  
 

Title of Project Review of charging for care and support policy and procedures. 

Team/Department Financial Services, Adult Social Care and Health 

Provide a comprehensive 
description of your project 
(or service/policy, etc.) 
including its purpose and 
scope 

 
The ESCC Charging for care and support policy applies the national legislation in the Care Act 
2014 at a local level. It governs the ESCC financial assessment process and provides the 
framework which ensures the legislation is applied appropriately and consistently for adults who 
have had care and support services arranged by East Sussex. This policy has not been fully 
revised since before the introduction of the Care Act 2014, which came was enacted in 2015, so 
is due for a review. 
 
The Financial Assessment process, governed by this policy, is vital to ensure the ongoing 
function of Adult Social Care services. The process sets individual assessed contributions and 
therefore generates significant income for the council. For context, the income that is generated 
from non-residential assessed contributions across the 24/25 financial year is £18 million. This 
rises to around £50 million per year if residential assessed contributions are also included. This 
shows the importance of ensuring a robust policy is in place to govern this process and ensure 
that charges are correctly applied. 
 

P
age 11

A
ppendix 1

https://intranet.escc.gov.uk/media/Documents/ASC%20-%20Planning%20Performance%20and%20Engagement/Charging%20for%20care%20and%20support%20policy%20and%20procedures.docx


2024                                                                                                2  

ESCC Legal Services undertook a high-level review of the charging policy in 2020, in response 
to a legal case against another LA and whilst the policy was deemed it lawful, it was 
recommended that a full review was undertaken, in particular to review:  

 The use of the Standard Weekly Charge (SWC) approach to invoicing. 

 Ensure Savings Credit Disregards are applied consistently across adults accessing both 
residential and non-residential care and support. 

 Update policy wording to demonstrate the effective differences between the ESCC policy 
and the Norfolk policy, i.e. to illustrate how ESCC’s approach differs in practice from 
Norfolk’s policy which had been found to be discriminatory. 

 Ensure individuals are effectively signposted to additional information and support, as 
required by Section 4 of the Care Act. 

 
Additionally, operational colleagues have identified elements of the current policy and practice 
that could be improved, including: 

 The process for calculating spouse allowances, as this is currently labour-intensive and 
overly generous (compared to other LAs). 

 
An external legal review of the proposed changes listed above was undertaken in June 2025. 
This supported the proposed changes and recommended that the EQIA continue to be updated 
and reviewed to ensure that any equality implications were considered, in line with ESCC’s 
public sector equality duty. 
 
This policy and process review has two main objectives: 

1) Reduce risk by ensuring compliance with legislation and case law. 
2) Generate income and reduce costs by ensuring processes are as efficient as possible. 

 
The impacts of this project delivery are expected to include: 

 Through this review of the Charging policy, and implementing the changes outlined in the 
previous section, ESCC will be able to demonstrate processes comply with all relevant 
legislation, case law and legal advice. 

 As a result, this will reduce the risk of legal challenge as a clear legal justification for all 
aspects of the policy and process will enable robust responses to any queries raised. 

 Although secondary to the main objective of ensuring legislative compliance, the 
proposals also present an opportunity for cost-savings (e.g. through increased 
efficiencies) and income generation (though changes to the calculation of spouse 
allowances). 

P
age 12



2024                                                                                                3  

 Increased efficiency within the service, for example a more streamlined process for 
spouse allowances and the removal of the standard weekly charging model for invoicing, 
will allow financial assessments to be completed as quickly as possible, therefore 
contributing to the overall work to reduce waiting times and meet service KPIs. 

 
Internal stakeholders from across ESCC have been involved in developing these proposals and 
this EQIA, including: 
- Financial Assessment and Benefits Team 
- Service Agreement Team 
- Engagement and Consultation Team 
- Policy Unit 
- Operational teams within ASCH (e.g. Care Management) 
- Brokerage and Supply Management 
- Legal Services 
- Business Services 
- Shared Care Information Systems (SCIS) 
Additionally, input has been sought from wider stakeholder groups, such as the Inclusion 
Advisory Group, and East Sussex Seniors Association. 

P
age 13



2024                                                                                                4  

1. Update on previous EQIAs and outcomes of previous actions (if applicable) 
 

What actions did you plan last time?  
(List them from the previous EQIA) 

What improved as a result?  
What outcomes have these actions 
achieved? 

What further actions do you need to 
take? (add these to the Action Plan 
below) 

Age – Details of age appropriate 
Minimum Income Guarantee (MIG - Local 
Authority Circular) allowances for each 
age group were added to the charging 
policy. 

Greater clarity for adults accessing care 
and support regarding the allowances 
that would apply to them based on their 
age. 

Continue to ensure that age appropriate 
MIG allowances are clear within the 
policy and/or supporting documentation 
(e.g. operational instructions) to ensure 
that people are treated appropriately 
according to their age. 

Disability – The policy utilised standard 
allowances for Disability-Related 
Expenditure (DRE) (based on disability 
benefits received) to ensure that disabled 
adults were not financially disadvantaged 
based on costs incurred through their 
disability or medical conditions. 

Efficient application of DRE quickly within 
financial assessments, with full 
assessments available on request, meant 
that this could be applied quickly for 
adults. 

As the use of standard allowances for 
DRE is under review (see separate 
project documentation and associated 
EQIA) further action will now be required 
to ensure that any changes to DRE do 
not disproportionately impact on any 
individuals because of their protected 
characteristics. A separate EQIA is 
underway focussing on the review of the 
DRE policy, so this change is outside the 
scope of this EQIA, however it is 
recognised that changes to DRE will be 
referred to within the updated Charging 
policy. 

Race/ethnicity – Recommendations 
were made that all documents relating to 
the financial assessment process could 
be translated as required. 

Current data does not record how many 
translated documents relating to financial 
assessments have been provided but 
there have been no recorded 
issues/complaints where race/ethnicity 
has prevented an individual from 
engaging with the financial assessment 
process. 

It is necessary to ensure that the updated 
policy and supporting documents 
continue to be available in other 
languages and/or could be translated as 
required.  

Marriage/civil partnership – The 
existing policy allows for the provision of 
a spouse allowance, in appropriate 

Improved information sharing for married 
and civil partners as well as those 
cohabiting. 

As the calculation of spouse allowances 
is one of the specific elements being 
reviewed as part of this project, it will be 

P
age 14

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-care-charging-for-local-authorities-2024-to-2025/social-care-charging-for-care-and-support-local-authority-circular
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-care-charging-for-local-authorities-2024-to-2025/social-care-charging-for-care-and-support-local-authority-circular


2024                                                                                                5  

circumstances, when a person is part of a 
couple living in the same household 
(whether married/civil partners or co-
habiting). For this to be applied the 
client’s partner needs to be willing to 
share their financial information. 
Additional support for benefit 
maximisation is also offered to the 
partner should they wish to engage with 
this. 

necessary to ensure that the updated 
process is fair and clearly defined within 
the policy. External legal review of the 
proposed approach (June 2025) agreed 
that the updates to non-residential FA 
spouse allowances calculations were 
lawful and did not discriminate on the 
basis of any protected characteristics. 

Sex/Gender – The previous EQIA found 
that women were more likely than men to 
have a dependent child living with them. 
Care Act guidance outlines an additional 
allowance where the dependent child is 
living with a parent, however East Sussex 
provides discretion in applying 
allowances where a child’s living 
arrangements is shared. 

The previous EQIA recommended that 
this discretion was clearly documented in 
the policy. 

It will be necessary to ensure that this 
discretion continues to be clearly 
documented in the updated policy (this is 
not one of the elements of process that is 
specifically under review). 

Rurality – The previous EQIA found that 
the existing charging policy considers 
people’s individual circumstances, e.g. 
offering assessments equally regardless 
of where the client lives in the county. 
However, it was recognised that costs for 
clients living in rural locations could be 
higher (i.e. higher transport costs or less 
support to choose from) and this may 
need to be reflected in their financial 
assessment or DRE calculations. 

The previous EQIA recommended that 
the policy was clear that rurality was 
considered as part of DRE and financial 
hardship assessments where there is a 
barrier due to disability or need. 

It will be necessary to ensure that this 
continues to be clearly documented in the 
updated policy. 

Carers – The previous EQIA noted that 
Carer's Allowance (CA) is paid to carers 
who care for someone for at least 35 
hours a week where the cared for person 
receives certain benefits. Not all those 
who are entitled to the payment receive it 

The previous EQIA also notes that ESCC 
do not charge unpaid carers for services 
provided directly to them. This was in 
recognition of the work they do and to 
reduce the risk of any negative impact on 

It will be necessary to ensure that this 
continues to be clearly documented in the 
updated policy. 

P
age 15



2024                                                                                                6  

(due to the value of other benefits 
received or if the person cared for is in 
hospital for example). There are over 
10,000 persons claiming CA in East 
Sussex. (Source DWP Feb 2020) 

them. It was felt that the existing policy 
had a positive impact on unpaid carers. 

The previous EQIA did not recommend any specific actions in relation to the following protected characteristics: Gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, sexual orientation, impacts on community cohesion, religion or belief. 

The actions above were taken from the last time an EQIA was completed for this policy (2021). The overall finding of the previous 
EQIA was that “The [financial assessment] process is highly individualised and seeks to consider each person’s financial and 
personal circumstances. The Support for Charging Framework provides significant support to individuals, and we are confident 
our policy is fair based upon the local environment including the financial landscape and demographics of East Sussex”. 
 

 

P
age 16



 

2024                                                                                                7  

2. Review of information, equality assessment and potential actions 
 

Consider the actual or potential impact of your project (service or policy) against each of the equality characteristics. 
 

 Age - people of all ages are protected under the Equality Act.  
Consider: older adults, under 5s, transition-aged young people (16-24), working age adults etc. 

A
g

e
 

What do you know? 
Summary of recent data, 
census information, 
research and insight about 
people who use your 
services and/or staff 

According to the 2021 Census, the proportion of the population of East Sussex aged 65 and over 
now stands at 26.1%, up from 22.7% in 2011.This means that older adults represent a larger 
proportion of those who draw upon care and support from East Sussex and therefore could be 
disproportionately impacted by any changes. 
 
Additionally, as people get older, they are increasingly likely to need to draw upon support from 
Adult Social Care. This means that any changes to the way care is funded/accessed may 
disproportionately impact this group of older adults. For younger adults who have a disability or 
long-term condition, they may be in receipt of care and support from ESCC for a longer period and 
therefore be subject to the Charging policy for a longer period. 
 
The age breakdown for adults for whom non-residential financial assessments have been 
completed in the past year is shown below. The average age is 67. 
 

Age 
range 

Number of 
adults 

% in age 
range 

15-24 302 4.14% 

25-34 642 8.81% 

35-44 559 7.67% 

45-54 599 8.22% 

55-64 915 12.55% 

65-74 911 12.49% 

75-84 1503 20.61% 

85-94 1573 21.57% 

95-104 287 3.94% 

105+ 0 0.00% 

TOTAL 7291 100.00% 

P
age 17



 

2024                                                                                                8  

 
The Office of National Statistics (ONS) records the proportion of non-internet users as halving 
between 2011 and 2018, down from 20% of adults to 10%.  of those who are classed as non-
internet users, 55% come from adults aged over 75, and 24% of those aged 65 to 74. This needs to 
be considered when planning communications relating to this change, as relying upon digital 
methods could exclude a large proportion of the group impacted by any changes. The proposal 
would be to write to anyone impacted by the changes, as this will involve an update to their 
financial assessment so they will be provided with an updated FA outcome letter. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of service-user 
and/or staff feedback 

 It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or 
discriminated against. 

 It has not yet been possible to gain direct feedback from people who draw upon care and 
support, however this project has been discussed with stakeholder groups (such as the East 
Sussex Seniors Association and Inclusion Advisory Group). Additionally, it was requested that 
proposals were shared with and distributed by partner organisations, for example through the 
Inclusion Advisory Group, to ensure that this is reflective of the needs of those with this 
protected characteristic. 

What does this mean4? 
Impacts identified from 
data and feedback (actual 
and potential) 

 It is important that a range of communication methods are used to inform adults of these 
changes, with a particular focus on written communication (e.g. post) to avoid the risk of digitally 
excluding adults. 

 Benefits are age-related which has an impact on charges for care. The Minimum Income 
Guarantee that ESCC applies is age-related (18 to 24; 25 to state pension age; state pension 
age and over). This means older people receive a higher allowance within the financial 
assessment to cover standard living costs. Some benefits are only available to working-age 
people but not to those who are older and of pension age, these extra benefits or circumstances 
can increase allowances applied to assessments.  

 Statistically, those in older age groups are more likely to be on a fixed income, so changes to 
charges/contributions/fees could have a disproportionate impact on them. This could, in some 
cases, lead to adults not engaging with care if they feel the cost of support is too high or 
unaffordable within their fixed income. This could also have an impact on carers/family 
members if, for example, an adult chooses not to ask ESCC to set up care on their behalf owing 
to the costs and then family or friends must act as support instead. 

 The proposed changes to Spouse Allowance calculations could help to ensure that individuals 
are not discriminated against on the basis of age. Currently, when calculating spouse 
allowances the State Pension age applicable amount is used, regardless of the age of the 

P
age 18



 

2024                                                                                                9  

spouse/partner being assessed. Whilst this could be seen as overly generous to the individual 
being assessed, it could also be seen as disadvantaging any other working age adult being 
assessed financially, in comparison to another working age adult who has a partner above 
State Pension age. 

 The change to Savings Credit Disregard could be seen as having an impact on individuals 
linked to the protected characteristic of age, as it only applies to those who reached pension 
age prior to 6/4/2016. However, the proposed change is intended to reduce the inequality posed 
by the current approach, as there are a group of adults who meet the eligibility criteria for age 
but don’t receive the appropriate savings credit disregard under the current policy. If the policy 
were updated as proposed then this group would be treated the same as others in the same 
age cohort, i.e. no longer disadvantaged on the basis of their age.  

 Whilst the application of savings credit disregards more broadly could be seen to discriminate 
on the basis of age, as they only apply to those who reached pension age prior to 6th April 2016, 
this is not based on an internal decision. The applicable age range for savings credit is set in 
national legislation, i.e. savings credit is being phased out nationally and no longer applies to 
anyone reaching pension age after the cutoff date in 2016. This is not discrimination arising 
from ESCC’s policy position but reflects the legal position nationally. One of the changes 
proposed to the ESCC policy through this work will help to mitigate this as much as possible, by 
extending the application of the savings credit disregard to an additional group who are above 
the age threshold but have not previously received this disregard in their financial assessments.  

What can you do? 
All potential actions to 
remove or reduce barriers 
and increase equality. 

 Continue to ensure that age-appropriate allowances (MIG, SCD etc) are clear within the policy 
and/or supporting documentation (e.g. operational instructions) to ensure that people are 
treated appropriately according to their age. 

 Additionally, care will be taken to mitigate the financial impact of changes, where possible. 

 Changes will ensure that differences in treatment based on age currently embedded within the 
SCD approach (i.e. differences between res and non-res application based on age) are 
removed so that SCD is applied equitably. 

 Individuals will be signposted to wider financial support information, e.g. through the ESCC 
website page for fully funding adults, as well as information/groups that may be able to support 
family members with caring responsibilities. This information has recently been 
reviewed/updated as part of a different project within ASCH to ensure it is as accessible and up-
to-date as possible. 

 Data will be collected moving forward to record the number of adults cancelling care, particularly 
when citing cost or unaffordability as the reasons for cancellation. This will enable any links to 

P
age 19

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/social-care/paying-for-care/full-cost
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/social-care/carers


 

2024                                                                                                10  

ages to be identified, i.e. to see if those with this protected characteristic are impacted more 
than others. 

 

 Disability - A person is disabled if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse 
effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities.  
Consider: sensory and mobility impairments; fluctuating, recurring or developmental conditions; learning difficulties; mental 
health; and people with cancer, multiple sclerosis or HIV. Neurodivergence and effects of menopause can also apply. 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

In the 2021 census, 20.3% of East Sussex residents were living with a long-term physical or mental 
health condition or impairment that affected their ability to carry out day-to-day activities, the same 
proportion as in 2011 (compared to 18% for England & Wales). 34.8% of households in East 
Sussex had at least one member identifying as disabled under the Equality Act in 2021. 
 
Individuals with disabilities and/or chronic health conditions are also disproportionately represented 
in the group who draw upon support from Adults Social Care, as they are more likely to need care 
in their day-to-day lives. It is not possible to identify all adults with disabilities from the existing 
reports on ContrOCC, however of the non-residential financial assessments undertaken in the past 
year 82% included DRE (5975/7290) so this could be a good estimation of the proportion of adults 
with disabilities overall. 
 
The ASCH Equalities Dashboard tells us the Primary Support Reason of our clients (PSR). The 
PSR describes why the individual requires social care support; the primary disability/impairment 
impacting on the individual’s quality of life and creating a need for support and assistive care. 

 Learning Disability 17% 

 Mental Health 11% 

 Physical Support 56% 

 Sensory Support 1% 

 Social Support 1% 

 Memory and Cognition 14% 
 
 

P
age 20



 

2024                                                                                                11  

However, the proposed changes will apply an equitable process for financial assessments to all 
adults, which will ensure that their disability is considered as appropriate and any necessary 
benefits and disregards are included/applied as needed, so it is not expected to have a 
disproportionate impact on this group. This policy review will align with the project also underway to 
review disability-related expenditure as part of financial assessments, so is expected to support the 
impact on those with this protected characteristic. Systems are already in place to support adults 
with disabilities through the FA process, for example assessments available online, over the phone, 
through in-person visits (including with support from practitioners if required) or with the support of 
a friend, family member or advocate to ensure that access to an appropriate FA is available to all, 
regardless of protected characteristics. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

 Carers tell us they sometimes need to be present to support the client to fully engage in the 

financial assessment and care planning processes.  

 A longer time may be required to understand and digest information being given and a quiet 

place to reduce or manage acquired stress. 

 It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or 
discriminated against. 

 It has not been possible to gain direct feedback from people who draw upon care and support, 

however this project was discussed with stakeholder groups (such as the Inclusion Advisory 

Group.  

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

 People with certain conditions may find the proposed policy harder to read/understand and/or 
may find it more difficult but can ask a carer or other representative to respond on their behalf. 
Additionally, the final policy documents can be translated and will be available in easy-read 
format to support with this. 

 The service needs to make appropriate provision for clients with disabilities that aids their 
understanding of the process whilst not causing undue stress.  

 Staff need to be trained and supported to recognise mental health and unseen disabilities and 
make the necessary adjustments to care. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

 The project team will work with Care Management colleagues to identify options for supporting 
those who lack capacity to make decisions regarding their care and finances. 

 The Project team will also work with other local groups/stakeholders who support individuals 
with disabilities in East Sussex to ensure they are aware of this proposal and can provide 
feedback before decisions are made. 

P
age 21



 

2024                                                                                                12  

 Follow best practice, informed by other LA’s approaches to supporting those without capacity in 
this context (information on which was collated at an earlier stage in the project to inform the 
ESCC decision making process). 

 Ensure that any carers and/or family/friends who are supporting the adult can also be  fully 
involved in the assessment and care planning process (as appropriate) to make sure the adult 
is supported to fully engage with the process. 

 Ensure that any changes to the charging policy consider changes to the Disability-related 
expenditure policy and process, and any concerns and mitigations from the EQIA for that work. 

 

 Gender reassignment - In the Act a transgender person is someone who proposes to, starts or has completed a process to 
change his or her gender. A person does not need to be under medical supervision to be protected 

G
e

n
d

e
r 

R
e
a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

The 2021 East Sussex Lesbian Gay Bisexual Trans Queer + (LGBTQ+)1 Comprehensive Needs 
Assessment estimates that there may be 5,572 Trans and Gender Diverse (TGD) people (1% of 
the population) living in East Sussex. The 2021 census found that 1640 residents declared their 
gender identity was different to that assigned at birth which is 0.4% of the population. 
 
We also know: 

 People may choose not to divulge this information, so the numbers above may not fully reflect 
the number of transgender people living in the county. 

 People do not always identify as the gender they were assigned at birth. 

 People may have a traumatic history with divulging their gender assigned at birth. 
 

It is not possible to identify specific number of adults to whom this applies from the ContrOCC data 
or LAS as this information is not recorded as part of financial assessments. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

 It is important that clients feel their views are heard. 

 It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped. 

 It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or 
discriminated against. 

 It has not been possible to gain direct feedback from people who draw upon care and support, 
however this project has been discussed with stakeholder groups (such as the Inclusion 
Advisory Group). 

                                            
 

P
age 22



 

2024                                                                                                13  

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

 Staff must be up to date with their Equalities and Diversity training, for example to help prevent 
unconscious bias. 

 Staff should not be hesitant in discussing client’s preferences as part of any contact with 
individuals accessing ESCC services, for example within the financial assessment process. 

What can you do? 
 All potential actions  

 Offer choice and control for clients wherever possible. 
 Use the pronouns that the client requests. 
 Avoid using cis-normative stereotyping. 

 

 Pregnancy and maternity - Protection is during pregnancy and any statutory maternity leave. 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y

 a
n

d
 M

a
te

rn
it

y
 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

Countywide, there are just under 5,000 births per year in East Sussex. Hastings has the highest 
overall birth rate, as well as for women aged 15-19 years. Lewes and then Rother have the highest 
birth rates for women aged 35-44 years. However, there is expected to be limited cross-over 
between those who are pregnant and those who are receiving care and support from Adult Social 
Care and therefore are impacted by changes to the Charging policy. 
 
It is not possible to identify specific adults to whom who have this protected characteristic from the 
standard reporting on ContrOCC as this is not recorded. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

No concerns have been raised by adults or partners about the impact of these proposed changes 
in relation to this protected characteristic. 
 
It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or discriminated 
against. 
 
It has not been possible to gain direct feedback from people who draw upon care and support, 
however this project has been discussed with stakeholder groups (such as the Inclusion Advisory 
Group). 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

It is not expected that the proposed changes to service delivery will have any impact on adults in 
relation to this protected characteristic. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

We will ensure that, if any concerns are raised in relation to the impact on this group in the future 
that the policy be reviewed and adapted accordingly to mitigate these. 

 

 Race (ethnicity) - This includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality, and includes refugees and migrants5, and 
Gypsies and Travellers.  

P
age 23



 

2024                                                                                                14  

R
a
c

e
 /
 e

th
n

ic
it

y
 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

88.3% of usual residents of East Sussex said that they belonged to the White English, Welsh, 
Scottish, Northern Irish or British ethnic groups. Black and minority ethnic groups including white 
minority groups (Irish, Gypsy or Irish Traveller, Roma, Other White) make up 11.7% of usual 
residents in East Sussex. This compares to 18.8% in England. 
 
In 2021, 93.9% (512,440) of usual residents in East Sussex identified their ethnic group within the 
high-level "White" category, a decrease from 96.0% (505,420) in the 2011 Census, but still 
significantly higher than the English national average (81.0%) and also higher than the average for 
the Southeast region (86.6%). 4.6% were of another white background; 1.6% were Asian/ Asian 
British, 0.5% were Black/ Black British and 1.3.% were from other ethnic backgrounds.  
 
Those selecting a non-UK identity only accounted for 5.5% of the overall population (29,880 
people), which is an increase from 4.3% of the population (23,090 people) in 2011. The most 
common non-UK identities are Polish, Irish, Romanian, Portuguese and Italian. 
 
A higher percentage of the population in East Sussex identified as Gypsy or Irish Traveller than the 
national average (0.2% compared to 0.1%). 
 
We know: 

  Individuals may require support to engage with services, for example through the offer of 
translation services. 

 Additionally, some individuals may feel less represented by existing services and/or may feel 
they are not appropriate for them on the basis of their race and/or ethnicity. 

 
It is not possible to identify the specific breakdown of race/ethnicity from the standard reporting on 
ContrOCC as this data is not recorded. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

 It’s important that clients feel their views are heard. 

 It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or 
discriminated against. 

 Concerns were raised by members of the Inclusion Advisory Group (December 2024) that 
language and cultural barriers could prevent adults from engaging with service changes, for 
example prevent them providing feedback on new proposals. Mitigations for this concern are 
outlined below. 

P
age 24



 

2024                                                                                                15  

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

 Each service user must be treated based on their individual needs. 

 Clients need access to appropriate advocate and interpreting services as identified at first point 
of contact. This includes to enable them to engage with the consultation prior to changes being 
implemented.  

 The service needs to actively record race/ethnicity to ensure services are appropriately 
delivered. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

 Ensure clients are offered advocacy services, where necessary. 

 Ensure interpreting service needs are identified at point of contact, and people are offered 
translated versions of the updated policy and supporting documentation, as appropriate. 

 Ensure that staff engaging with adults directly know how to check records are correct and 
update them as necessary 

 Ensure staff ask relevant details from clients 

 Ensure staff do not make assumptions and allow clients to self-identify race/ethnicity 

 

 Religion or belief - Religion includes any religion with a clear structure and belief system. Belief means any religious or 
philosophical belief. The Act also covers lack of religion or belief. 

R
e
li

g
io

n
 o

r 
B

e
li
e

f 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

In 2021, 45.9% (250,330) of usual residents of East Sussex identified as Christian, down from 
59.9% (315,650) in 2011.  
The second most common religion in East Sussex after Christianity is Islam. The proportion of the 
population stating they were Muslim increased from 0.8% of the usual resident population (4,200) 
in 2011 to 1.1% (6,190) in 2021. This is low compared to both the Southeast Regional and the 
English national averages, with 3.3% of residents in the Southeast specifying their religion as 
Islam, and 6.7% across the whole of England.   
 
Whilst the largest single religious group is those identifying as Christian, we know that East Sussex 
has a number of people with different religious affiliations and beliefs. 
 
It is not possible to identify the specific breakdown of religion and/or belief within the standard 
reporting on ContrOCC as this data is not collected. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

 It’s important that clients feel their views are heard. 

 It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or 
discriminated against. 

P
age 25



 

2024                                                                                                16  

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

 Each service user must be treated based on their individual needs. 

 Clients may need access to appropriate advocate and interpreting services, and this should be 
identified at first point of contact.  

 The service may need to actively record religion and/or belief moving forward to ensure services 
are appropriately delivered.  

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

 Ensure clients are offered advocate/interpretation services as required. 

 Ensure interpreting service needs are identified at point of contact and clients are offered, 
where appropriate, translated versions of the updated policy and/or supporting information. 

 Ensure that staff engaging with adults directly know how to check records are correct and 
update them as necessary. 

 Ensure an individual’s beliefs and spiritual needs are considered as part of their financial 
assessment (for example as part of allocating DRE). 

 Ensure staff ask relevant details of client. 

 Ensure staff do not make assumptions and allow clients to self-identify religion/belief. 

 This has identified a need to improve the data available; this is being addressed through our 
operational teams which includes action on how we improve collecting data to ensure equalities 
impacts can be fully considered moving forward. 

 

 Sex - women and men are protected under the Act. 

S
e

x
  

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

Of the population of East Sussex, 299,064 (52%) are female and 270,788 (48%) are male. 
 
We also know: 

 People do not always identify as the gender they were assigned at birth. 

 We know that biological sex does not fall into two categories (i.e. Intersex). 
 
According to ASC Equalities Dashboard (September 2021) 58% of clients receiving Long Term 
Support are female and 42% are male. Females are more likely to live longer and more likely to 
receive Long Term Support. 
 
Across active non-residential financial assessments, there are significantly more females than 
males, see breakdown below. Whilst the proposed changes do not directly impact people based on 
their sex, we recognise that the data shows there is not an equal spread within this cohort as 
almost 2/3 of the individuals who could be impacted by these potential changes are women. 

P
age 26



 

2024                                                                                                17  

 

Male 3724 35.62% 

Female 6473 61.91% 

Not 
known 258 2.47% 

 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

No concerns have been raised by adults or partner organisations about the impact of these 
proposed changes in relation to this protected characteristic. 
 
It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or discriminated 
against. 
Additionally, this project has been discussed with stakeholder groups (such as the Inclusion 
Advisory Group and East Sussex Senior’s Association). 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

As women live longer on average, they are more likely to draw upon support from Adult Social Care 
and for a longer period. This means that changes to the financial assessment and charging 
processes could have a more significant impact on them. 
 
Men are also less likely to have a dependent child live with them and are more likely to pay Child 
Support Allowance. Women are more likely than men to have a dependent child living with them. 
Currently Care Act guidance provides an additional allowance where the dependent child is living 
with a parent, however East Sussex provides discretion in applying allowances where a child’s 
living arrangements are shared. It will be necessary to ensure this discretion continues to be 
recorded within the updated policy. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

We will ensure that, if any concerns are raised in relation to the impact on this group in the future 
that the policy be reviewed and adapted accordingly to mitigate these. 

 

 Sexual orientation - The Act protects bisexual, gay, heterosexual and lesbian people. 

S
e

x
u

a
l 

o
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

The 2021 East Sussex LGBTQI+ Comprehensive Needs Assessment estimates that there may be 
between 17,273 and 39,004 LGB+ people living in East Sussex (between 3.1% and 7% of the 
population). According to the 2021 Census 3.3% of East Sussex residents declared themselves as 
LGB+. 
 
In adults, the GP patient survey found that mental health condition prevalence was significantly 
higher in LGB+ people (41%), compared to heterosexual people (11%), especially in bisexual 

P
age 27



 

2024                                                                                                18  

people (56%). This could mean that this group is disproportionately represented amongst those 
who need to access care and support from the local authority. 
 
It is not possible to identify details regarding their sexual orientation from the standard reporting on 
ContrOCC as this data is not recorded. We do know that LGBTQ+ adults are statistically less likely 
to have children and are more likely to be living alone, which means they may not be able to draw 
upon the support of children or close family to assist them with sourcing and setting up care, which 
in turn means they be more likely to require the support of ESCC to do so. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

 Some people are happy to divulge this information, whilst others are not, particularly as they 
may feel that this is not relevant to their financial assessment. This could have an impact on 
their financial assessment, for example if their partner is mistaken for a friend and they 
would then be eligible for a spouse allowance, so it may be relevant for this data to be 
requested by the financial assessor. This will not be a requirement of the assessment 
though and is not required should the individual not wish to share this information. 

 It is important that clients feel their views are heard, if they choose to share this information. 

 It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or 
discriminated against. 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

Staff must not make assumptions about someone’s sexual orientation, for example based on 
someone’s appearances or other interactions staff have with them. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

 Ensure all staff have completed equality and diversity training, to help prevent unconscious 
bias. 

 Avoid using hetero-normative stereotyping. 

 

 Marriage and civil partnership - Only in relation to due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination. 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 a
n

d
 C

iv
il
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

According to the 2021 census data for East Sussex: 

 Single 29% 

 Married 46.5%  

 Civil Partnership 0.4% 

 Divorced 11% 

 Widowed 8% 
 
It is not possible to identify the marital status for all adults who have been financially assessed as 
this is not always recorded on ContrOCC (and is not recorded in 86% of cases on LAS). ContrOCC 

P
age 28



 

2024                                                                                                19  

can give an indication of the type of financial assessment completed (i.e. single or couples 
assessment) but that does not always align with marital status, as it could be applied if a long-term 
partner is living in the home but the individuals were not married. For reference 12% of non-
residential financial assessments completed in the past year included spouse allowances 
(863/7290). 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

 People tell us how they’d like to be addressed. 

 It’s important that clients feel their views are heard. 

 It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or 
discriminated against. 

 Some people are happy to divulge this information, whilst others are not. This could have an 
impact on their financial assessment, e.g. if they are eligible for a spouse allowance, so it may 
be relevant for this data to be requested by the financial assessor. This will not be a 
requirement of the assessment though and is not required should the individual not wish to 
share this information. 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

 People who live together as a co-habiting couple are treated as a couple irrespective of their 
marriage or civil partnership. This is usually determined by receipt of benefits from the DWP; 
where a person received benefits for a couple they are assessed on this basis, where benefits 
are paid as a single person this is the assessment which is completed.   

 Our policy provides the ability to provide a spouse allowance when a person is part of a couple 
living in the same household but in order for this to be applied the clients partner needs to be 
willing to share their financial information. We offer additional support for benefit maximisation 
for the partner if they choose to engage with this. 

 Staff must not make assumptions on a person’s marital or civil partnership status. 

 Individuals should be advised of whether sharing this information could have a positive impact 
on their financial assessment, e.g. to see if they would be eligible for a spouse allowance. 
However, they will not be required to share this if they do not wish to. Financial Assessments 
can be completed without sharing this. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

 Ensure the updated calculations for spouse allowances are equitable, fully recorded within the 
policy and shared with individuals at the point of their financial assessment. This is particularly 
important if there could be a financial benefit to the individual from engaging with a couples 
assessment/spouse allowance. 

 Avoid using heteronormative stereotyping. 

 Ask people how they would like to be addressed. 

 

P
age 29



 

2024                                                                                                20  

 Armed Forces - protected by the Armed Forces Act 2021 which aims to help prevent service personnel, veterans and their 
families being disadvantaged when accessing public services. The duty applies to specifically housing, education or healthcare 
functions, but check whether any impacts may apply in your case. 

A
rm

e
d

 f
o

rc
e

s
 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

 In 2021, 21,173 people in East Sussex reported that they had previously served in the UK 
armed forces (4.6% of usual residents aged 16 years and over). 

 There were 19,917 households (8.3% of all households) in East Sussex with at least one 
person who had served in the UK armed forces. 

 East Sussex had the 4th highest proportion of veterans in the 16 and over population (4.6%) 
in the Southeast 

It is not possible to identify whether adults who have been financially assessed have previously 
served in the armed forces, as this is not included in the data recorded on ContrOCC. Certain 
income disregards apply to income received by the Armed Forces Community, such as to the 
guaranteed income payment paid to injured ex-service personnel and other pensions. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

No concerns have been raised by adults or partners (such as the Inclusion Advisory Group) about 
the impact of these proposed changes in relation to this protected characteristic. 

 It is important that clients are seen as individuals and do not feel stereotyped and/or 
discriminated against. 

 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

It is not expected that the proposed changes to service delivery will have any impact on adults in 
relation to this protected characteristic, for example the existing disregards linked with armed forces 
involvement will continue to be applied. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

We will ensure that, if any concerns are raised in relation to the impact on this group in the future 
that the policy be reviewed and adapted accordingly to mitigate these. 

 

 Impacts on community cohesion – Consider impacts on how groups see one another or how the council’s resources are seen 
to be allocated. Include opportunities to positively impact on good relations between groups.    

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

c
o

h
e
s

io
n

 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

The council has a legal duty to foster good relations between groups of people who share different 
protected characteristics. Some actions or policies may have impacts – or perceived impacts – on 
how groups see one another or in terms of how the council’s resources are seen to be allocated. 
As the Charging policy will be applied equally to all adults during the financial assessment there 
should be no perceived disparity or inequity of treatment that could damage community cohesion. 

P
age 30



 

2024                                                                                                21  

To support this, the policy could also be made available online so it is transparent how financial 
assessments are conducted. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

This project has been discussed with stakeholder groups (such as the East Sussex Senior’s 
Association and Inclusion Advisory Group and no concerns were raised regarding any potential 
impact on community cohesion. 
 
We will ensure that, if any concerns are raised in relation to the impact on community cohesion in 
the future that the policy be reviewed and adapted accordingly to mitigate these. 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

No impacts have currently been identified in relation to community cohesion. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

Any changes to the Care and support policy will be communicated to adults who draw upon ASCH 
services clearly  (i.e. through updated FA outcome letters if there will be any change to their client 
contribution), i.e. to enable ESCC to maximise the effectiveness of the funding it has available to 
support as many people as possible in the fairest possible way (i.e. to calculate what individuals 
can appropriately pay towards their care). 

 
Additional categories 
 

Rurality - issues can include isolation, access to services (e.g.: GPs, pharmacies, libraries, schools), low income / part-time work, 
infrequent public transport, higher transport and fuel costs and lack of affordable housing. Deprivation can be more dispersed and less 
visible. 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

74% of the population in East Sussex lives in an urban area with the remaining 26% living in a rural 
area (2021 census). 
 
It is not possible to identify whether those individuals who have been financially assessed live in rural 
or urban areas as this data is not available explicitly on ContrOCC. Address data for individuals is 
known, however this does not define whether this is a rural or urban location so these criteria would 
need to be defined. 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

No concerns have been raised by adults or stakeholders about the impact of these proposed changes 
in relation to this protected characteristic. Financial assessments are undertaken for adults who live 
countywide and their location does not impact this. Most assessments are undertaken using online 

P
age 31



 

2024                                                                                                22  

information and/or over the phone, but assessment officers can visit adults anywhere in the county to 
undertake assessments if needed.  
 
However, there is a risk that living in a rural area could make it more difficult/expensive to source care 
and could lead to increased care costs for adults living in these areas. Additionally, there is an 
increased risk of digital exclusion for those living in rural areas, for example from poor mobile and 
internet signal, which in turn could make it more difficult for these adults to engage with the financial 
assessment process. 
 
This project was discussed with stakeholder groups, such as the Inclusion Advisory Group and East 
Sussex Seniors Association. The IAG mirrored concerns that rurality could make it more difficult for 
individuals to engage with the FA process and also could lead to them having higher costs. The 
mitigations for these risks are: 1) that assessments are offered in a variety of ways (phone, online, 
paper and in-person) to enable people to engage with the process effectively in both urban and rural 
parts of the county and 2) that higher costs could be considered under DRE within a financial 
assessment if someone faces higher costs relating to their disability/medical needs from living in a 
rural area (e.g. higher heating or transport costs). 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

It is not expected that the proposed changes to service delivery will have any impact on adults in 
relation to this protected characteristic. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

Ensure rurality is considered as part of DRE and financial hardship assessments where there is a 
barrier due to disability or need.  Offer financial assessments in the most appropriate form for each 
individual, i.e. using online or phone methods if appropriate or offering an in-person visit if required 
owing to their rural location. 
 
We will ensure that, if any concerns are raised in relation to the impact on this group in the future that 
the policy be reviewed and adapted accordingly to mitigate these. 

 

Carers - A carer is anyone, of any age, who looks after a family member, partner or friend who needs help because of their illness, 
frailty, disability, a mental health problem or an addiction and cannot cope without their support. The care they give is unpaid. 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

There are over 10,000 individuals claiming Carers Allowance (CA) in East Sussex. (Source DWP Feb 
2020). Care for the Carers estimates that there are 69,241 unpaid carers in East Sussex. It is difficult 
to know the actual number of carers because so many carers are hidden.  
 

P
age 32



 

2024                                                                                                23  

It is not possible to identify the specific number of carers that could be impacted by this specific 
proposal from the ContrOCC data. This is because it is not clear from the standard financial 
assessment reporting if those who have been financially assessed are supported by family and/or 
friends in a caring capacity. However, for reference, the reporting shows that 7% of non-residential 
financial assessments completed in the past year included a disregard for carers allowance 
(538/7290). 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

It has not yet been possible to gain direct feedback from people who draw upon care and support, 
however this project has been discussed with stakeholder groups (such as the East Sussex Senior’s 
Association and the Inclusion Advisory Group) and no specific concerns were raised. 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

Through a combination of disregarding carers allowance within financial assessments and from not 
charging unpaid carers for services provided directly to them, it expected that this policy will continue 
to have a positive impact on carers (as is the case with the existing policy). The potential impact will 
be fully explored through the public consultation in case any additional impacts are identified. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

Individuals will be signposted to wider support information, such as information/groups that may be 
able to support family members with caring responsibilities in the event that these proposals mean 
that individual carer’s require additional support. 
We will ensure that, if any concerns are raised in relation to the impact on this group in the future that 
the policy be reviewed and adapted accordingly to mitigate these. 

 

People with care experience 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

Not known – It is not possible to identify this from current data, as the report from ContrOCC does not 
record whether an individual has previously received care from ESCC (i.e. is “care experienced”). 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

No concerns have been raised by adults or partners about the impact of these proposed changes in 
relation to this protected characteristic. 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

It is not expected that the proposed changes to service delivery will have any impact on adults in 
relation to this protected characteristic. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

We will ensure that, if any concerns are raised in relation to the impact on this group in the future that 
the policy be reviewed and adapted accordingly to mitigate these. 

 

P
age 33

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/social-care/carers


 

2024                                                                                                24  

Other people that may be differently affected - this will vary by service, but includes people who:  
 are homeless or in insecure housing,  
 in prison,  
 with low levels of literacy,  
 are digitally excluded,  
 experiencing or in recovery from drug and alcohol addiction (and their families),  
 have or are experiencing domestic or sexual abuse. 

What do you know? 
Summary of data  

East Sussex is fifth most deprived of 26 County Councils. 13% of people aged 60 plus were living in 
poverty in 2019 (source Joint Strategic Needs Assessment). 10.3% of households were in fuel poverty 
in 2019 compared to 9.3% across England. 
 
 

What do people tell you? 
Summary of feedback 

No concerns have been raised by adults or partners about the impact of these proposed changes in 
relation to the above groups.  
 
It has not yet been possible to gain direct feedback from people who draw upon care and support, 
however this project has been discussed with stakeholder groups (such as the East Sussex Senior’s 
Association and the Inclusion Advisory Group) and no specific concerns were raised. 

What does this mean? 
Impacts identified  

It is not expected that the proposed changes to service delivery will have any impact on adults in 
relation to this protected characteristic. 
 
This client group falls into the category of ‘seldom heard’, meaning they are less likely to access care 
and support in line with their needs - this could be due to a lack of fixed address or a lack of trust in 
services for example. 

What can you do? 
All potential actions  

Ensure all communications are as accessible as possible and available in a variety of media. This will 
include an easy read version of the policy. This will also include printed versions of the policy being 
made available where appropriate, to ensure no one is digitally excluded from having their voice 
heard. This can be requested over the phone to FABA or through a care practitioner. 
 
Ensure staff are knowledgeable of partner agencies and services offered in the community. 
 
We will ensure that, if any concerns are raised in relation to the impact on this group in the future that 
the policy be reviewed and adapted accordingly to mitigate these. 

 

P
age 34



 

2024                                                                                                25  

Staff impacts: if your proposal affects staff, have you consulted with the Staff Networks? (contact details are on the equality pages of 
the intranet: search for ‘staff networks’) 

N/A - no expected impact on staff roles or responsibilities. No changes to staffing structures or responsibilities. Staff have been 
consulted on the required changes to internal processes that would be required to implement this project. This has been reflected within 
the options papers accordingly. 

 

Assessment of overall impacts, summary of actions and any further recommendations 

 Risk that policy document cannot be accessed by some individuals to whom it applies, e.g. owing to language barriers or 
disabilities. 

o Mitigation is to ensure that the policy updates are accessible and can be accessed in a variety of forms, media and 
languages (as appropriate). 

o Support from Care Management colleagues to identify individual needs and signpost translation services or alternative 
media for policy or leaflets as necessary. 

 Risks of disproportionate impact on older adults accessing services. 
o Mitigation is to ensure charges are applied on the basis of financial assessment outcome, i.e. not linked with age.  
o Policy development to ensure that people are no longer treated inequitably on the basis of age (i.e. through the changes to 

application of SCD and by ensuring age-appropriate applicable amounts are used as the basis for SA calculations being 
proposed in this policy change). 

o Additionally, the proposed changes will be reviewed by partner organisations supporting older adults in East Sussex, and 
the ESCC-led East Sussex Senior’s Association, to help identify any further risks and mitigations. 

 Risks of disproportionate impact on females accessing services. 
o Mitigation is to ensure charges are applied on the basis of financial assessment outcome, i.e. not linked with gender.  
o Additionally, the proposed changes will be reviewed by partner organisations supporting all genders in East Sussex, i.e. 

through the Inclusion Advisory Group, to help identify any further risks and mitigations. 

 Risk from limited data, i.e. not able to identify risks to specific groups. 
o Mitigation is to seek additional data, where available and appropriate, to inform this proposal such as through external 

stakeholder groups. 

 
  

P
age 35



 

2024                                                                                                26  

3. List detailed data and/or community feedback that informed your EQIA 
 

Source and type of data (e.g. 
research, or direct engagement 
(interviews), responses to 
questionnaires, etc.) 

Date  

Gaps in data (were there any people 
you didn’t hear from? Does research 
include information on all 
characteristics?) 

Actions to fill these gaps: who else 
do you need to engage with? 
(add these to the Action Plan below, 
with a timeframe) 

Research on approach taken by other 
LAs 

Oct-Dec 
2024 

Data sampled from more than 20 LAs, 
however this does not necessarily reflect 
the approach taken by all LAs nationally.  

Additional data collated from NAFAO 
and other LA consultations to help 
ensure that the data was as 
representative as possible of 
approaches taken by other LAs. 

EQIAs and consultations from other 
LAs who have implemented changes 
to their charging policy and approach 

Oct-Dec 
2024 

Only able to collate data from 
consultations and EQIAs that were 
available publicly, or from LAs who 
responded to the request to share 
information. 

Contacted LAs again who have 
recently consulted on this type of 
change to request they share their 
consultation reports and EQIA to 
inform ESCC approach. 

Data on individuals with active 
financial assessments (ContrOCC, 
Infoview) 

Oct-Dec 
2024 

Limits to exported data, i.e. unable to 
show ethnicity, religious beliefs or sexual 
orientation 

Using census data and other available 
methods to identify impact on these 
groups. 

Proposed changes shared with 
stakeholder groups (Inclusion Advisory 
Group, Disability Rights Reference 
Group, East Sussex Senior’s 
Association) to request feedback on 
the proposals. 

December 
2024, 
ESSA May 
2025 

Limitation of engaging with stakeholder 
groups, rather than the full cohort, so 
data can only be representative of 
feedback from those who could be 
impacted. 

Asked stakeholder groups to share 
information with members and/or 
through their wider networks to collect 
broader feedback. 

 

P
age 36



 

2024                                                                                                27  

4. Prioritised Action Plan 
NB: The Council’s duties are ongoing: impacts must be kept under review. Actions need to be implemented and if significant 
changes occur further assessment may be needed.  
Transfer these actions to service or business plans and monitor to ensure they achieve the outcomes identified. Your 
departmental equality lead will follow up at an agreed time to ensure actions are being implemented.  
 

Impact identified and 
group(s) affected 

Action planned Expected outcome Measure of success Timeframe  

AGE: Potential to 
disproportionately impact 
on those who are older, 
as 58% of the adults to 
whom these changes 
could apply are 65+ 
(average age is 67). This 
could mean that changes 
have a disproportionate 
impact because of age. 
Additionally, those over 
retirement age are 
statistically more likely to 
be on a fixed income so 
changes to their 
assessed contribution 
could have a more 
significant impact on their 
remaining funds. 

Ensure that financial 
assessments are 
conducted equitably for 
all, regardless of age. 
 
Adults of any age can 
request an updated 
financial assessment if 
they feel that their 
situation has changed, 
and their charges need to 
be recalculated. 
 
Individuals will be 
signposted to wider 
financial support 
information, e.g. through 
the ESCC website page 
for fully funding adults, as 
well as information and 
groups that may be able 
to support family 
members with caring 
responsibilities. 
Individuals will also be 

Ensure that appropriate 
disregards are applied for 
adults on the basis of 
their age to maximise 
their available funding in 
line with the updated 
charging policy. 
 
Ensure that the 
appropriate applicable 
amount is used, based 
the age of the 
partner/spouse, as part of 
future spouse allowance 
calculations.  
 
Allow a grace period of 3 
months to help mitigate 
the impact of increased 
client contributions to any 
individuals who are 
impacted by changes to 
the spouse allowance 
calculations. This will 
allow them time to budget 

The policy will ensure 
that all adults, regardless 
of their age, are left with 
the correct age-
appropriate Minimum 
Income Guarantee (MIG). 

Ongoing 

P
age 37

https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/social-care/paying-for-care/full-cost
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/social-care/carers
https://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/social-care/carers


 

2024                                                                                                28  

signposted to wider 
support available to help 
with identifying and 
arranging appropriate 
care and support, such 
as the directory available 
through Care Choices. 
 
 
Ensure spouse allowance 
calculations are based on 
age-appropriate 
applicable amounts, 
rather than always using 
pension age values 
regardless of age, to 
ensure this does not 
inadvertently discriminate 
against other working 
age adults. 

for the impact of any 
changes to their 
assessed contribution. 

AGE: Help to mitigate 
financial impact of 
changes, particularly on 
groups with fixed 
incomes (such as those 
above retirement age), by 
promoting benefits 
maximisation. 

The Department of 
Health and Social Care’s 
guidance states that a 
person will have their 
benefits maximised at the 
same time as the means 
tested assessment is 
carried out. Within the 
Financial Assessment, 
Financial Assessment 
Officers will help adults to 
identify any benefits they 
may be entitled to that 
they are not claiming and 

Having benefits 
maximised helps with a 
person’s overall 
wellbeing, reducing 
stress etc. This could 
also help to ensure that 
individuals have sufficient 
income to pay for care as 
well as the new proposed 
costs if they are claiming 
all that they are entitled 
to. 

Increased benefits being 
claimed by adults (as 
appropriate) 

Ongoing. 

P
age 38

https://www.carechoices.co.uk/publication/east-sussex-care-services-directory/


 

2024                                                                                                29  

receive the correct advice 
and information on how 
to claim, which may 
include signposting to the 
relevant organisations. 

GENDER: Gender 
imbalance in target 
cohort (62% female) 
means that there is the 
potential to 
disproportionately impact 
women if changes are 
introduced. 

Ensure financial 
assessments are 
completed equitably for 
all adults to avoid any 
discrimination based on 
gender. 
 
Adults of any gender can 
request an updated 
financial assessment if 
they feel that their 
situation has changed 
and their charges need to 
be recalculated. 
 
 

Apply the updated 
charging policy to all 
adults as part of their 
financial assessments, 
regardless of gender. 

The policy will ensure 
that all adults, regardless 
of their gender, have had 
an individualised financial 
assessment which takes 
account of their specific 
circumstances (including 
gender as appropriate) 
and have an assessed 
contribution which aligns 
with their financial 
situation. 

Ongoing 

 
ALL: People are asked 
about their demographic 
information and are 
supported regardless of 
how they identify.  

 
Ensure all staff are 
encouraged to complete 
Diversity and Equality 
Training  

Adults will feel accepted 
and respected. 
 
Diversity and Equality 
Training will lead to a 
change of thinking and 
behaviours of staff, which 
will have a positive 
impact on the experience 
of adults accessing 
services. 

The client will be fully 
able to participate in the 
financial assessment 
process. 
 
Number of staff 
undertaking Diversity and 
Equality Training. 

Ongoing. 
 
Analysed yearly in April. 

P
age 39



 

2024                                                                                                30  

ALL: Ensure 
consultations and policy 
changes are accessible 
and applicable to those 
with all protected 
characteristics. 

Ensure interpreting 
service needs are 
identified at point of 
contact and that any 
policy changes can be 
available in a range of 
languages and Easy 
Read format, as required. 
 
Ensure proposal is 
discussed with 
stakeholder groups 
representing members of 
the community- including 
the Inclusion Advisory 
Group, The Disability 
Rights Reference Group 
and the East Sussex 
Seniors Association, to 
enable any additional 
impacts links to protected 
characteristics to be 
identified.  

All adults will be fully able 
to participate in the 
financial assessment 
process, understand 
what charges apply and 
agree to these. 

The client will be fully 
able to participate in the 
financial assessment 
process. 
 
Increased use of ESCC 
Translation and 
interpretations services 
(as required) 

Ongoing 
 
Stakeholder engagement 
completed. 

All: Ongoing engagement 

with service users  

Service user feedback 
will continue to be 
collected by Financial 
Services, for example 
through the FABA survey 
to inform service delivery. 

Feedback from service 
users is used to identify 
gaps in provision and 
good practice.  

A range of service users 
provide regular feedback. 
 
Protected characteristics 
are collected within this 
feedback (where 
appropriate) to identify if 
there are any gaps in 
service provision for 
specific groups. 
 

Ongoing. 
 
FABA survey to be 
revisited annually (TBC) 

P
age 40



 

2024                                                                                                31  

 
EQIA sign-off: (for the EQIA to be final the following people must review and agree it) 
 
Staff member competing Equality Impact Assessment:  Ben Baker    Date: 31/7/25 
 
Directorate Management Team rep or Head of Service:  Sonny Butler    Date: 31/7/25 
 
Equality lead:        Sarah Murray   Date: 31/7/25 

P
age 41



 

2024                                                                                                32  

Guidance end-notes 

1 EQIAs are always proportionate. The greater the potential adverse impact on a protected group (e.g. disabled people), the 
more thorough our process must be. Consider: 

 The nature of the service, or scope of the policy/strategy 

 The resources involved 

 The number of people affected 

 The size of the likely impact 

 The vulnerability of the people affected 
 
2 Our duties in the Equality Act 2010 
Under the Equality Act 2010 we have a legal duty to demonstrate that we have identified and considered the actual and potential 
impact of our activities on people who share any of the legally ‘protected characteristics’: age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, and marriage and civil partnership. This applies to 
policies, services (including commissioned services), and our employees. This template provides evidence of this consideration.  
 
In the Act we must give ‘due regard’ (pay conscious attention) to the need to:  

 avoid, reduce, minimise or eliminate any negative impact (if you identify unlawful discrimination, you must stop the 
action and take advice immediately). 

 promote equality of opportunity by removing or minimising disadvantages; taking extra steps to meet people’s needs; 
encouraging participation; and treating disabled people differently, including more favourably where necessary. 

 foster good relations by tackling prejudice and promoting understanding. 
 
3 The following principles, drawn from case law, explain what we must do to fulfil our duties under the Equality Act:  
 Knowledge: all Council employees must be aware of our legal duties and comply with them appropriately in our daily work.  
 Timeliness: assessment must be completed and considered at the time a decision is taken – not afterwards.  
 Real Consideration: the duty must be an integral, rigorous part of your decision-making process and influence the process.   
 Sufficient Information: you must assess what information you have and what more is needed to give proper consideration.  
 No delegation: the Council is responsible for ensuring that any contracted services, which are provided on its behalf, can and 

do comply with these legal duties.  
 Review: this continuing duty applies when you develop/agree a policy or service and when it is implemented and reviewed. 
 Proper Record Keeping: you must keep records of the process, the impacts and the actions that you will implement.  

 

                                            

P
age 42



 

2024                                                                                                33  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
4 Your EQIA must get to grips fully and properly with actual and potential impacts. Our legal duties to identify equality impacts don’t 
stop us taking decisions, or introducing changes that are needed. They do require us to take decisions and make changes 
conscientiously and deliberately confront the anticipated impacts on people. 

 
5 Refugees and migrants means people whose intention is to stay in the UK for at least one year (excluding visitors, short term 
students or tourists). This definition includes asylum seekers; voluntary and involuntary migrants; people who are undocumented; 
and the children of migrants, even if they were born in the UK. 
 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Member on 15 December 2025
	4 Changes to Spouse Allowances and Savings Credit Disregards within the Adult Social Care Charging for Care and Support policy
	Appendix 1


